
WASHTENAW COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION 
Bi-Monthly Meeting of the Board of County Road Commissioners 

August 20, 2019 – 1:00 p.m. 

Washtenaw County Road Commission Boardroom    555 N. Zeeb Road    Ann Arbor, Michigan  48103 

 
AGENDA 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
II. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
III. ACCEPTANCE OF MINUTES .............................................................................. Page 1-16 

A.  Board Meeting Minutes of August 6, 2019 
B.  Executive Session Minutes of August 6, 2019 
 

IV. RETIREMENT PRESENTATION – Kent J. Hopkins 
 

V. PUBLIC COMMENT 
This is the time set aside on the agenda to receive comments from the public.  This is not 
intended to be a period for dialogue or questions and answers.  Each person will be allotted 
(3) minutes to address the Board. 
A. Public Comment 
B.  Written Communications ................................................................................ Page 17-30 
 

VI. NEW BUSINESS 
A. Consent Agenda .......................................................................................  Page 31-54 

1. Retirement Resolution of Public Service – Kent J. Hopkins 
2. Textile Road at Woodland Drive – MDOT Contract No. 19-5403 
3. SAW Grant – Storm Structure Cleaning Contract Services 
4. Whitmore Lake High School Homecoming Parade – Road Closure 
5. 905 E. Cross Street, Ypsilanti – Right of Way Sidewalk Easement 
6. 2020 Capital Equipment Purchase – Tractor Upfitting 
7. Payroll & Bills August 7, 2019 

 
B. Action Item 

1. Hewitt Road Permit Application #14345 – Waiver Request 
 

VII. REPORTS .......................................................................................................... Page 55-60 
A. County Commissioner’s Report 
B. Road Commissioners’ Report 
C. Managing Director’s Report 

1. Staff Report of 7-29 thru 8-11-19 
2. Michigan Transportation Fund Receipts 

 
VIII. ADJOURNMENT 



Page  16652 

    WASHTENAW COUNTY BOARD OF ROAD COMMISSIONERS 

555 North Zeeb Road, Ann Arbor, MI  48103 

Minutes of August 6, 2019 

Board Present: Road Commissioners Doug Fuller, Barbara Fuller, Rod Green 

Staff Present: S. Siddall, J. Harmon, M. MacDonell, D. Ackerman, C. Ryan, E. Kizer

Others Present: R. Jamnick, T. Derderian, J. Scharf 

The meeting was called to order at 1:00 p.m. by Douglas Fuller, Chair.  The Pledge of Allegiance 
was recited. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

RC19-255 R. Green moved, B. Fuller seconded to approve the agenda as presented. 
Voice Vote:  YEAS:  3   NAYS: 0   ABSENT: 0   ABSTAIN: 0   Motion Carried. 

ACCEPTANCE OF THE MINUTES 

RC19-256 B. Fuller moved, R. Green seconded, the Board hereby approves the Board Meeting 
Minutes of July 16, 2019 as presented.  Voice Vote:  YEAS:  3   NAYS: 0    
ABSENT: 0    ABSTAIN:  0   Motion Carried. 

RC19-257 B. Fuller moved, R. Green seconded, the Board hereby approves the Board 
Working Session Minutes of July 22, 2019 as presented.  Voice Vote:  YEAS:  3   
NAYS: 0   ABSENT: 0    ABSTAIN:  0   Motion Carried. DRAFT

1



August 6, 2019  P a g e  | 16653 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
Mr. John Scharf thanked the Board of Road Commissioners for the service and listening to the 
community regarding the discontinuation of the herbicide roadside spraying program.  Mr. Scharf 
thanked the Road Commission for having the millage review meeting on September 9th.   
 
WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS  

ISSUED: August 1, 2019 
WHERE: Curtis Road between Plymouth Road and 6 Mile Road 
TOWNSHIP: Salem and Superior 
WHY: Preventative maintenance – chip seal – Curtis Road closed 
WHEN: Thursday, August 1, 2019 
CONTACT: Adam Lape, Superintendent of Maintenance 

ISSUED: July 31, 2019 
WHERE: North Territorial Road between &S-23 and Spencer Road 
TOWNSHIP: Northfield 
WHY: Preventative maintenance – chip seal – North Territorial Road closed 
WHEN: Wednesday, July 31, 2019 
CONTACT: Ken Harris, Superintendent of Maintenance 

ISSUED: July 29, 2019 
WHERE: North Territorial Road between Webster Church Road and Maple Road 
 Mast Road between North Territorial Road and Strawberry Lake Road 
 Strawberry Lake Road between Mast Road and the county line 
TOWNSHIP: Webster 
WHY: Preventative maintenance – chip seal – roads closed 
WHEN: Tuesday, July 30, 2019 
CONTACT: Ken Harris, Superintendent of Maintenance 

ISSUED: July 29, 2019 
WHERE: Zeeb Road between Ellsworth Road and Waters Road 
TOWNSHIP: Lodi  
WHY: Completion of paving project - Zeeb Road re-opened 
WHEN: Monday, July 29, 2019 
CONTACT: James Hui, Project Manager 

ISSUED: July 29, 2019 
WHERE: Hogback Road between Clark Road and Huron River Drive 
TOWNSHIP: Ann Arbor 
WHY: Completion of paving project – Hogback Road re-opened 
WHEN: Saturday, July 27, 2019 
CONTACT: Mike Bernbeck, Project Manager 
  

DRAFT

2



August 6, 2019  P a g e  | 16654 

ISSUED: July 30, 2019 
WHERE: Pleasant Lake Road between Fletcher Road and Lima Center Road and  
 Fletcher Road between Pleasant Lake Road and Ellsworth Road 
TOWNSHIP: Freedom 
WHY: DTE-electric line maintenance 
WHEN: Wednesday, July 31, 2019 
CONTACT: John Posegay, Permits Coordinator 

ISSUED: July 25, 2019 
WHERE: Mast Road between N. Territorial Road and Strawberry Lake Road and  
 Strawberry Lake Road between Mast Road and the county line 
TOWNSHIP: Webster 
WHY: Preventative maintenance – chip seal – Mast Road closed 
WHEN: Monday, July 29, 2019 
CONTACT: Ken Harris, Superintendent of Maintenance 

ISSUED: July 25, 2019 
WHERE: Joy Road between Mast Road and Zeeb Road 
TOWNSHIP: Border of Webster and Scio Townships 
WHY: Road resurfacing – Joy Road closed 
WHEN: Monday, July 29, 2019 
CONTACT: Adam Lape, Superintendent of Maintenance 

ISSUED: July 24, 2019 
WHERE: North Territorial Road between Hankerd Road and Dexter-Pinckney Road 
TOWNSHIP: Dexter 
WHY: Preventative maintenance – chip seal – North Territorial Road closed 
WHEN: Thursday, July 25, 2019 
CONTACT: Ken Harris, Superintendent of Maintenance 

ISSUED: July 22, 2019 
WHERE: Parker Road between Scio Church Road and Dexter-Chelsea Road 
TOWNSHIP: Border of Scio and Lima Townships 
WHY: Preventative maintenance – Parker Road closed 
WHEN: Tuesday, July 23, 2019 
CONTACT: Ken Harris, Superintendent of Maintenance 
 

ISSUED: July 18, 2019 
WHERE: Joy Road between Mast Road and Zeeb Road 
TOWNSHIP: Border of Webster and Scio Townships 
WHY: Drainage improvements and shoulder maintenance – Joy Road closed 
WHEN: Monday, July 22, 2019 
CONTACT: Adam Lape, Superintendent of Maintenance 
 
  

DRAFT

3



August 6, 2019  P a g e  | 16655 

ISSUED: July 16, 2019 
WHERE: Grove Road between Margarita Street and Harris Road 
TOWNSHIP: Ypsilanti 
WHY: Slope stabilization and road repairs – Grove Road closed 
WHEN: Thursday, July 18, 2019 
CONTACT: Aaron Berkholz, Senior Project Manager 

ISSUED: July 16, 2019 
WHERE: Grass Lake Road between Sylvan Road and M-52 
TOWNSHIP: Sharon 
WHY: Preventative maintenance – chip seal – Grass Lake Road closed 
WHEN: Wednesday, July 17, 2019 
CONTACT: Ken Harris, Superintendent of Maintenance 
 

ISSUED: July 17, 2019 
WHERE: Hogback Road between Clark Road and Huron River Drive 
TOWNSHIP: Ann Arbor 
WHY: Road resurfacing – Hogback Road closed 
WHEN: Monday, July 22, 2019 
CONTACT: Mike Bernbeck, Project Manager 

ISSUED: July 17, 2019 
WHERE: Sylvan Road between Heim Road and Old US-12 
TOWNSHIP: Sylvan 
WHY: Preventative maintenance – chip seal – Sylvan Road closed 
WHEN: Thursday, July 18, 2019 
CONTACT: Ken Harris, Superintendent of Maintenance 

ISSUED: July 16, 2019 
WHY: WCRC Board Announcement – WCRC Herbicide Spraying termination 
WHEN: July 16, 2019 

ISSUED: July 15, 2019 
WHERE: Sharon Hollow Road between Sharon Valley Road and Pleasant Lake Road  

and Pleasant Lake Road between Sharon Hollow Road and M-52 
TOWNSHIP: Sharon 
WHY: Preventative maintenance – chip seal – Sharon Hollow Road closed 
WHEN: Tuesday, July 16, 2019 
CONTACT: Ken Harris, Superintendent of Maintenance 
  

DRAFT

4



August 6, 2019  P a g e  | 16656 

ISSUED: July 15, 2019 
WHERE: Sharon Valley Road between Prospect Hill Road and Sharon Hollow Road 
TOWNSHIP: Sharon 
WHY: Preventative maintenance – chip seal – Sharon Valley Road closed 
WHEN: Tuesday, July 16, 2019 
CONTACT: Ken Harris, Superintendent of Maintenance 
 
ISSUED: July 15, 2019 
WHY: Congratulations on Michigan Certified Bronze Veteran Friendly Employer 
FROM: Randy Leffel, Michigan Veterans Affairs Agency (MVAA) 
 
ISSUED: July 11, 2019 
WHERE: Austin Road between the County Line and the Village of Manchester 
TOWNSHIP: Manchester 
WHY: Preventative maintenance – chip seal – Austin Road closed 
WHEN: Monday, July 15, 2019 
CONTACT:  Ken Harris, Superintendent of Maintenance 
 

CONSENT AGENDA  

The items approved on the Consent Agenda are as follows: 

RC19-258 R. Green moved, B. Fuller seconded the approval of the Consent Agenda for  
August 6, 2019 as presented.  Voice Vote:  YEAS: 3   NAYS: 0    ABSENT: 0   
ABSTAIN:  0  Motion Carried. 

2019 County Wide Guardrail Bid Results 
RC19-259 R. Green moved, B. Fuller seconded that upon the recommendation of the Director 

of Engineering/County Highway Engineer and the concurrence of the Managing 
Director, the Board hereby accepts the low bid and authorizes the Managing 
Director to sign the contract with Action Traffic Maintenance for the 2019 County 
Wide Guardrail project.  Voice Vote:  YEAS: 3   NAYS: 0    ABSENT: 0   
ABSTAIN:  0  Motion Carried. 

2019 Pedestrian Signal Upgrades Bid 

RC19-260 R. Green moved, B. Fuller seconded that upon the recommendation of the Director 
of Engineering/County Highway Engineer and the concurrence of the Managing 
Director, the Board hereby accepts the unit prices contained within the low bid and 
authorizes the Managing Director to sign the contract with J. Ranck Electric, Inc. 
for the 2019 Pedestrian Signal Upgrades project.  Voice Vote:  YEAS: 3   NAYS: 
0    ABSENT: 0   ABSTAIN:  0  Motion Carried. 

  

DRAFT

5



August 6, 2019  P a g e  | 16657 

2019 Pedestrian Facilities Upgrades Bid 

RC19-261 R. Green moved, B. Fuller seconded that upon the recommendation of the Director 
of Engineering/County Highway Engineer and the concurrence of the Managing 
Director, the Board hereby accepts the unit prices contained within the low bid and 
authorizes the Managing Director to sign the contract with Doan Construction Co., 
Inc. for the 2019 Pedestrian Facilities Upgrades project.  Voice Vote:  YEAS: 3   
NAYS: 0    ABSENT: 0    ABSTAIN:  0  Motion Carried. 

Grove Road Slope Stabilization – YCUA Agreement 

RC19-262 R. Green moved, B. Fuller seconded that upon the recommendation of the Director 
of Engineering/County Highway Engineer and the concurrence of the Managing 
Director, the Board hereby approves the Grove Road Improvement Agreement with 
the Ypsilanti Community Utilities Authority and authorizes the Chair and 
Managing Director to sign said Agreement. Voice Vote:  YEAS: 3   NAYS: 0    
ABSENT: 0   ABSTAIN:  0  Motion Carried. 

Dixboro Road Shared Use Trail Phase 2 – Engineering Design Services 

RC19-263 R. Green moved, B. Fuller seconded that upon the recommendation of the Director 
of Engineering/County Highway Engineer and the concurrence of the Managing 
Director, the Board hereby authorizes the Managing Director to sign a Purchase 
Order to Wade Trim Associates for the Engineering Design Services of the Dixboro 
Shared Use Trail Phase 2 project located in Ann Arbor Township, at a cost not to 
exceed $138,402.  Voice Vote:  YEAS: 3   NAYS: 0    ABSENT: 0     
ABSTAIN:  0  Motion Carried. 

US-12 Transportation Improvement Study – Engineering Design Services 

RC19-264 R. Green moved, B. Fuller seconded that upon the recommendation of the 
Director of Engineering/County Highway Engineer and the concurrence of the 
Managing Director, the Board hereby authorizes the Managing Director to sign a 
Purchase Order to OHM Advisors for the Engineering Services of the US-12 
Transportation Improvement Study located in Ypsilanti Township, at a cost not 
to exceed $120,691. Voice Vote:  YEAS: 3   NAYS: 0    ABSENT: 0   ABSTAIN:  
0  Motion Carried. 

Ypsilanti Township – US-12/M-17 Road Improvement Agreement (Revised) 

RC19-265 R. Green moved, B. Fuller seconded that upon the recommendation of the Director 
of Engineering / County Highway Engineer and the concurrence of the Managing 
Director, the Board hereby approves and authorizes the Chair and Managing 
Director to sign the Ypsilanti Township Road Improvement Agreement (Revised) 
for the improvement of US-12 between I-94 and Wiard Road and M-17 (Ecorse 
Rd) between Ford Boulevard and US-12 located in Section 11 of Ypsilanti 
Township.  Voice Vote:  YEAS: 3   NAYS: 0    ABSENT: 0    ABSTAIN:  0  
Motion Carried. 

DRAFT

6



August 6, 2019  P a g e  | 16658 

Ypsilanti Township Agreement – Kewanee Street Traffic Calming Project 

RC19-266 R. Green moved, B. Fuller seconded that upon the final approval from the Ypsilanti 
Township Board with the recommendation of the County Highway Engineer and 
the concurrence of the Managing Director, the Board hereby approves and 
authorizes the Chair and Managing Director to sign the Ypsilanti Township 
agreement for the design and administration of the construction of two (2) speed 
humps on Kewanee Street between Packard Road and Washtenaw Avenue at the 
estimated cost of $16,961.50.  Voice Vote:  YEAS: 3   NAYS: 0    ABSENT: 0    
ABSTAIN:  0  Motion Carried. 

Wagner Road Safety Project – Preliminary Engineering Services Agreement 

RC19-267 R. Green moved, B. Fuller seconded that upon the recommendation of the Director 
of Engineering and the concurrence of the Managing Director, the Board hereby 
authorizes the Managing Director to sign the contract with Fishbeck, Thompson, 
Carr & Huber, Inc. for the Preliminary Engineering of the Wagner Road Safety 
Project, at a cost not to exceed $75,000.  Voice Vote:  YEAS: 3   NAYS: 0    
ABSENT: 0    ABSTAIN:  0  Motion Carried. 

Run Tough for Chad Tough Foundation 1 Mile & 5K Run – Road Closure 

RC19-268 R. Green moved, B. Fuller seconded that upon the recommendation of the County 
Highway Engineer and the concurrence of the Managing Director, the Board hereby 
approves the closure of the following roads on Saturday, September 28, 2019, for 
the Annual Run Tough for Chad Tough 1 Mile and 5K Run from 8:30 a.m. – 10:30 
a.m.: 

• Campus Parkway between Industrial Drive and Community Drive 
• Community Drive between Campus Parkway and Bicentennial Parkway 
• Bicentennial Parkway between Community Drive and Wilson Road 
• Wilson Road – the section between Bicentennial Parkway 

Voice Vote:  YEAS: 3   NAYS: 0    ABSENT: 0    ABSTAIN:  0  Motion Carried. 

Chelsea Fair Parade – Road Closure 

RC19-269 R. Green moved, B. Fuller seconded that upon the recommendation of the County 
Highway Engineer and the concurrence of the Managing Director, the Board hereby 
approves the closure of the following road on Saturday, August 27, 2019 for the 
Annual Chelsea Fair Parade: 

• Old US-12 from M-52 to Wilkinson Street - 12:45 p.m. to 3:00 p.m. 

Voice Vote:  YEAS: 3   NAYS: 0    ABSENT: 0    ABSTAIN:  0  Motion Carried. 
  

DRAFT

7



August 6, 2019  P a g e  | 16659 

2019-2020 Winter Maintenance Guidelines 

RC19-270 R. Green moved, B. Fuller seconded that upon the recommendation of the Director 
of Operations and the concurrence of the Managing Director, the Board hereby 
approves the 2019-2020 Winter Maintenance Guidelines.  Voice Vote:  YEAS: 3   
NAYS: 0    ABSENT: 0    ABSTAIN:  0  Motion Carried. 

2020 Capital Equipment Purchase – 2020 International HV613 Truck Chassis 

RC19-271 R. Green moved, B. Fuller seconded that upon the recommendation of the Director 
of Operations and the concurrence of the Managing Director, the Board hereby 
approves the purchase from Tri-County International Trucks, Inc., 3001 E. High 
Street, Jackson, Michigan, 49203 through the State of Michigan MIDEAL 
purchasing program of three (3) new model year 2020 International HV613 truck 
chassis for the total cost of $335,622.00.  Voice Vote:  YEAS: 3   NAYS: 0    
ABSENT: 0    ABSTAIN:  0  Motion Carried. 

2020 Capital Equipment Purchase – Wheel Loader 

RC19-272 R. Green moved, B. Fuller seconded that upon the recommendation of the Director 
of Operations and the concurrence of the Managing Director, the Board hereby 
approves the purchase from Michigan CAT, 24800 Novi Road, Novi, Michigan, 
48375 through the State of Michigan MIDEAL purchasing program of a 2020 
Caterpillar 950M HL Wheel Loader for the net cost after trade-in of $249,672.00 
through the State of Michigan MIDeal purchasing program.  Voice Vote:  YEAS: 
3   NAYS: 0    ABSENT: 0    ABSTAIN:  0  Motion Carried. 

2020 Capital Equipment Purchase – Self Propelled Broom 

RC19-273 R. Green moved, B. Fuller seconded that upon the recommendation of the Director 
of Operations and the concurrence of the Managing Director, the Board hereby 
approves the purchase from AIS Construction Equipment, 3600 North Grand River 
Avenue, Lansing, Michigan, 48906 through the State of Michigan MIDEAL 
purchasing program of a new Broce RCT-350 Rear Engine Self Propelled Broom 
for the total cost of $60,329.25.  Voice Vote:  YEAS: 3   NAYS: 0    ABSENT: 0     
ABSTAIN:  0  Motion Carried. 

2020 Capital Equipment Purchase – Chip Spreader 

RC19-274 R. Green moved, B. Fuller seconded that upon the recommendation of the Director 
of Operations and the concurrence of the Managing Director, the Board hereby 
approves the purchase from AIS Construction Equipment, 3600 North Grand River 
Avenue, Lansing, Michigan, 48906 through the State of Michigan MIDEAL 
purchasing program of a new factory ordered Etnyre 4WD Chip Spreader for the 
total cost of $346,752.00.  Voice Vote:  YEAS: 3   NAYS: 0    ABSENT: 0    
ABSTAIN:  0  Motion Carried. 

DRAFT

8



August 6, 2019  P a g e  | 16660 

2020 Capital Equipment Purchase – Pneumatic Tire Rollers 

RC19-275 R. Green moved, B. Fuller seconded that upon the recommendation of the Director 
of Operations and the concurrence of the Managing Director, the Board hereby 
approves the purchase from AIS Construction Equipment, 3600 North Grand River 
Avenue, Lansing, Michigan, 48906 through the State of Michigan MIDEAL 
purchasing program of two (2) new Hamm GRW 180i-10 Pneumatic Tire Rollers 
for the total cost of $425,666.00.  Voice Vote:  YEAS: 3   NAYS: 0    ABSENT: 0     
ABSTAIN:  0  Motion Carried. 

2020 Capital Equipment Purchase – Tar Distributor 

RC19-276 R. Green moved, B. Fuller seconded that upon the recommendation of the Director 
of Operations and the concurrence of the Managing Director, the Board hereby 
approves the purchase from AIS Construction Equipment, 3600 North Grand River 
Avenue, Lansing, Michigan, 48906 through the State of Michigan MIDEAL 
purchasing program of a new factory ordered Etnyre 4,000 Gallon Centennial 
Distributor for the total cost of $146,740.00.  Voice Vote:  YEAS: 3   NAYS: 0    
ABSENT: 0    ABSTAIN:  0  Motion Carried. 

2020 Capital Equipment Purchase – Western Star 4700 Set-Back Front Axle Chassis 

 RC19-277 R. Green moved, B. Fuller seconded that upon the recommendation of the Director 
of Operations and the concurrence of the Managing Director, the Board hereby 
approves the purchase D&K Truck Company, 3020 Snow Road, Lansing, 
Michigan, 48917 through the State of Michigan MIDEAL purchasing program for 
a new model year 2020 Western Star 4700 truck cab and chassis for the total cost 
of $126,957.00.  Voice Vote:  YEAS: 3   NAYS: 0    ABSENT: 0    ABSTAIN:  0  
Motion Carried. 

2020 Capital Equipment Purchase Authorization – Four Western Star 4700 SB Truck 
Cab/Chassis 

RC19-278 R. Green moved, B. Fuller seconded that upon the recommendation of the Director 
of Operations and the concurrence of the Managing Director, the Board hereby 
approves the purchase from D & K Truck Company, 3020 Snow Road, Lansing, 
Michigan, 48917 through the State of Michigan MIDEAL purchasing program of 
four (4) new model year 2021 Western Star 4700SB truck cab and chassis for the 
total cost of $486,060.00.   Voice Vote:  YEAS: 3   NAYS: 0    ABSENT: 0    
ABSTAIN:  0  Motion Carried. 

  

DRAFT

9



August 6, 2019  P a g e  | 16661 

2020 Capital Equipment Purchase Authorization – Four Western Star 4700SB Truck 
Upfitting 

RC19-279 R. Green moved, B. Fuller seconded that upon the recommendation of the Director 
of Operations and the concurrence of the Managing Director, the Board hereby 
approves the purchase from Truck & Trailer Specialties, Inc., 1200 Victory Drive, 
Howell, Michigan, 48843 through the City of Rochester Hills MITN Purchasing 
Cooperative Member Service Agreement of component upfitting for four (4) new 
model year 2021 Western Star 4700SB truck cab and chassis for the total cost of 
$640,503.00. It is understood that a 2% discount of the total price will be 
reimbursed to the Road Commission at time of invoice provided payment is 
received by Truck & Trailer within 30 days.  Voice Vote:  YEAS: 3   NAYS: 0    
ABSENT: 0    ABSTAIN:  0  Motion Carried. 

Installment Purchase (4) Four Heavy Trucks 

RC19-280 R. Green moved, B. Fuller seconded 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Road Commissioners of the County of 
Washtenaw, Michigan (the “Road Commission”) determines it to be necessary for 
the public health, safety and welfare of its residents to purchase and equip four (4) 
heavy duty trucks as described in Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof 
(the “Equipment”); and 

WHEREAS, under the provisions of Act 283, Public Acts of Michigan, 1909, as 
amended (“Act 283”), the Road Commission is authorized to enter into any 
contracts or agreements for the purchase of property or equipment for public 
purposes, to be paid for in installments over a period of not to exceed the useful life 
of the property acquired as determined by resolution of the Road Commission; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Road Commission has solicited quotes for the financing of the 
Equipment; and 
 
WHEREAS, quotes have been received, and it has been determined that the 
proposal of Chelsea State Bank (the “Bank”) is the most advantageous to the Road 
Commission; and 
WHEREAS, an Installment Purchase Agreement (the “Agreement”) between the D 
& K Truck Company and Truck & Trailer Specialties, Inc. (each, a “Vendor” and 
together the "Vendors"), and the Bank, for the purchase of the Equipment has been 
prepared; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Agreement is to be assigned to the Bank. 

 
  

DRAFT

10



August 6, 2019  P a g e  | 16662 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 
1. Approval of Agreement.  The Agreement is hereby approved substantially 
in the form attached hereto at Exhibit B.  The Road Commission shall incur the 
debt described in the Agreement through execution of the Agreement by the 
officers authorized below which debt shall consist of the principal financed amount 
of not to exceed Eight Hundred Ninety Thousand Two Hundred Eighty-Three 
Dollars ($890,283) which shall be payable in not to exceed sixty (60) monthly 
payments of principal and interest, commencing February 1, 2020 or such other 
dates and/or payment frequency as the officers shall determine, at the rate of 2.30% 
per annum.  Payments due under the Agreement shall be subject to prepayment 
prior to maturity, in whole or in part, at the option of the Road Commission, on any 
date, without premium, with thirty (30) days written notice to the Bank.   

2. Execution and Delivery of Agreement.  The Chair and Clerk are hereby 
authorized and directed to execute the Agreement and deliver it to the Vendors, 
substantially in the form attached hereto with such additions, changes and 
modifications as shall be reasonably necessary, provided such changes shall not be 
materially detrimental to the Road Commission. 

3. Useful Life of Equipment.  The useful life of the Equipment is hereby 
determined to be not less than five (5) years. 

4. Authorization of Officers.  The Chair, Clerk, Managing Director, and 
Director of Finance and IT are each hereby authorized and directed to execute such 
additional documentation and open such accounts as shall be necessary to effectuate 
the closing of the Agreement and the assignment thereof.   

5. Assignment of Agreement.  The assignment of the Agreement by each 
Vendor to the Bank as the assignee of each Vendor is hereby approved. 

6. Security.  The Road Commission hereby agrees to include in its budget for 
each year, commencing with the current fiscal year, a sum which will be sufficient 
to pay the principal of and interest on the Agreement coming due before the next 
fiscal year.  In addition, the Equipment shall serve as collateral and security for the 
payments to be received pursuant to the Agreement and a statutory lien is hereby 
created in favor of the bank or financial institution as assignee under the 
Agreement. 

  

DRAFT

11



August 6, 2019  P a g e  | 16663 

7. Tax Covenant.  The Road Commission hereby covenants that, to the extent 
permitted by law, it shall take all actions within its control necessary to maintain 
the exemption of the interest on the obligations under the Agreement from general 
federal income taxation (as opposed to alternative minimum or other indirect 
taxation) under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, including but not 
limited to, actions relating to the rebate of arbitrage earnings, if applicable, and the 
expenditure and investment of proceeds of the Agreement and moneys deemed to 
be proceeds. 

8. Qualified Tax Exempt Obligations.  The Road Commission hereby 
designates the Agreement as a “qualified tax-exempt obligation” for purposes of 
deduction of interest expense by financial institutions under the provisions of the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

9.  Authorization to Adjust Terms; Solicitation of Proposals; Award of 
Financing. The Chair, Clerk, Managing Director and Director of Finance and IT are 
each hereby authorized to adjust the final details set forth herein to the extent 
necessary or convenient to complete the transactions authorized herein, and in 
pursuance of the foregoing are authorized to make determinations regarding the 
principal and interest payment dates, frequency, maturity, and redemption 
provisions.  The final terms of the Agreement shall be evidenced through execution 
of the Agreement by the Chair and Clerk. 

10. Repealer.  All resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict 
with the provisions of this resolution be and the same hereby are rescinded. 
Voice Vote: YEAS: 3   NAYS: 0    ABSENT: 0   ABSTAIN:  0  Motion Carried. 

2019 Second Quarter Budget Amendments 

RC19-281 R. Green moved, B. Fuller seconded that upon the recommendation of the Director 
of Finance and IT and the concurrence of the Managing Director, the Board hereby 
approves the 2019 Second Quarter Budget amendments as presented.  Voice Vote: 
YEAS: 3   NAYS: 0    ABSENT: 0   ABSTAIN:  0  Motion Carried. 

Debt Service – SAD Bond Issue 

RC19-282 R. Green moved, B. Fuller seconded the Board hereby approves Voucher 362-
201902 totaling $13,397.60 for Debt Service SAD Bond Issues.  Voice Vote: 
YEAS: 3   NAYS: 0    ABSENT: 0   ABSTAIN:  0  Motion Carried. 

Payroll & Bills for July 24, 2019 

RC19-283 R. Green moved, B. Fuller seconded the Board hereby approves Voucher 10360 
totaling $309,028.02 for payroll of July 24, 2019, and Voucher 10361 totaling 
$2,883,853.46 in payment of bills for July 24, 2019.  Voice Vote: YEAS: 3    
NAYS: 0    ABSENT: 0   ABSTAIN:  0  Motion Carried. 

  

DRAFT

12



August 6, 2019  P a g e  | 16664 

ACTION ITEM 

CRASIF 2019 Board of Trustees Election 

RC19-284 R. Green moved, B. Fuller seconded the Washtenaw County Board of Road 
Commissioners hereby approves John Hunt, of Huron County Road Commission 
and Jerry Smigelski, of Presque Isle County Road Commission for the two three-
year at-large positions and Mary Sholander of Marquette County Road Commission 
for the Upper Peninsula Road Builders Association position.   

Voice Vote: YEAS:  3   NAYS: 0    ABSENT: 0   ABSTAIN:  0  Motion Carried. 

DISCUSSION ITEM 

Napier Road Establishing Speed Limit 

Sheryl Siddall, Managing Director, provided a review of the Michigan Vehicle Code specifying 
that the Road Commission can post a speed limit along Napier Road.  The access points have been 
counted at this location.  Sheryl stated that the Board is not required to act on this.  The Road 
Commission will file a Traffic Control Order with the County Clerk’s Office establishing a 45mph 
speed limit on Napier Road from North Territorial Road to a point one-half mile north of North 
Territorial Road. 

REPORTS 

COUNTY COMMISSIONER REPORT 

Ruth Ann Jamnick thanked the Board for the sympathy card on the passing of her daughter. 

ROAD COMMISSIONER REPORTS 
Commissioner Doug Fuller 
The Border to Border trail ribbon cutting ceremony will be on August 27, 2019.   
Commissioner Fuller attended the Southeast Council meeting on August 5th.  Commissioner Fuller 
reported that there was discussion on various counties considering withdrawing their maintenance 
contracts with MDOT at both the SE Council meeting and the MCRCSIP annual meeting. 

Commissioner Barb Fuller 
Commissioner Barb Fuller attended the following meetings: 
7/22     WCRC Working Session 
7/23     Non-Motorized Trail from Watkins Lake State Park to Manchester Village 
7/24     Impact of legislation regarding 5G and ROW access at WCRC 
8/5       SE Council Meeting at WCRC office 
  

DRAFT

13



August 6, 2019  P a g e  | 16665 

Commissioner Rod Green  
Commissioner Rod Green attended the following meetings: 
7/22     WCRC Working Session 
7/25     SEMCOG Executive Committee meeting 
8/5       SE Council Meeting at WCRC office 
 
MANAGING DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
Sheryl Siddall, Managing Director 
Sheryl Siddall recognized Nicole Peterson, Human Resources Manager, for reaching out to the 
Michigan Veterans Affairs Agency regarding hiring veterans and receiving the Veterans Bronze 
Star status. 
There will be a County Board of Commissioners Roads Funding Subcommittee meeting on 
Thursday, 8/15 @ 8:00a.m.  WCRC staff will be present to provide information on extending the 
county wide millage program. 

OPERATIONS REPORT 

Jim Harmon, Superintendent of Maintenance 

• Jim Harmon thanked the Board for approval of the purchase of various equipment and provided 
a review of how this equipment is used.  Jim stated that there are several pieces of equipment 
that have failed and are in for repair. 

• The WCRC will be hosting the SEMCOG Winter Maintenance Workshop on September 19, 
2019 at the WCRC Northeast Service Center. 

• Jim provided a review of the Operations work schedule sheet. 
 
FINANCE & IT REPORT 
Dan Ackerman, Director of Finance & IT  
 
Finance Report 

• Dan Ackerman reported that we have successfully paid two vendors electronically.  We are the 
first Road Commission to pay vendors electronically in this manner.  Dan acknowledged Tracy 
Balkwell for her work in assisting in getting this program launched. 

• Oakland County Road Commission will be moving to Precision software.  They will have a 
site visit to WCRC to see how we work with Precision software and electronic time keeping. 

• Dan thanked the Board for approving the installment purchase for four trucks. 
• Public Act 202 – the State of Michigan has asked for some additional information. 
• Staff is working on census information for the 2018 OPEB report. 
  

DRAFT

14



August 6, 2019  P a g e  | 16666 

IT 

• In a few years, Microsoft will no long support Skype.  We are looking at Team software to 
replace Skype. 

• An IT Intern was hired to assist in the IT department. 
• We have received the digital signage PC’s and will be setting those up.  This is a way to 

communicate with staff and the yards. 
• A cautionary message was added to all external emails to ensure you know who the email 

sender is. 
 

ENGINEERING REPORT 
Matt MacDonell, Director of Engineering  

• Zeeb Road is now re-opened after paving. 

• Grove Road – the sheeting installation is complete which will stop the infrastructure from 
sliding any further.  Staff is working with OHM and Dan’s Excavating to address the out letting 
of the drainage.  We will be working with the township on this.  We are also coordinating with 
YCUA. 

• Textile Road – the paving was complete yesterday.  There is continuing work on shoulders, 
restoration and signals. 

• Lehman Road – estimates were received on culvert options.  The chosen culvert was an 
aluminum box culvert at a cost of approximately $100,000.  Matt MacDonell will contact Peter 
Psarouthakis, Sharon Township Supervisor regarding this. 

• Saline-Milan Road – the removal of existing structure is complete.  The Sub-contractor is on 
site this week. 

• The Border to Border project on Huron River Drive is progressing well. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Mote, et al vs. WCRC 

RC19-285 B. Fuller moved, R. Green seconded to enter into Executive Session at 
approximately 2:14 p.m. to discuss the case of Appeal of Mote, et al vs. WCRC.   

Roll Call Vote: 
YEAS: D. Fuller, B. Fuller, R. Green 
NAYS: None 
ABSENT: None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
Motion Carried. 
  

DRAFT

15



August 6, 2019  P a g e  | 16667 

 

RC19-286 R. Green moved, B. Fuller seconded to exit Executive Session at approximately 
4:09 p.m.    

Roll Call Vote: 
YEAS: D. Fuller, B. Fuller, R. Green 
NAYS: None 
ABSENT: None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
Motion Carried. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

RC19-287 B. Fuller moved, R. Green seconded to adjourn the August 6, 2019 meeting at  
4:09 p.m.  Voice Vote:  YEAS: 3    NAYS: 0    ABSENT: 0    ABSTAIN:  0  Motion 
Carried. 

 

  
 Douglas E. Fuller, Chair 

 

  
Sheryl Soderholm Siddall, Deputy Clerk 

Minutes Approved:  _________________________ 

DRAFT

16



 

COMMISSIONERS 
 

DOUGLAS E. FULLER 
CHAIR 

 
BARBARA RYAN FULLER 

VICE-CHAIR 
 

RODRICK K. GREEN 
MEMBER 

 

WASHTENAW COUNTY 
BOARD OF COUNTY ROAD COMMISSIONERS 

555 NORTH ZEEB ROAD 
ANN ARBOR, MICHIGAN 48103 

WWW.WCROADS.ORG 
TELEPHONE (734) 761-1500 

FAX (734) 761-3737 

SHERYL SODERHOLM SIDDALL, P.E. 
MANAGING DIRECTOR 

 
MATTHEW F. MACDONELL, P.E. 

DIRECTOR OF ENGINEERING 
COUNTY HIGHWAY ENGINEER 

 
JAMES D. HARMON, P.E. 
DIRECTOR OF OPERATIONS 

 
DANIEL D. ACKERMAN 

DIRECTOR OF FINANCE & IT 

 
TO: Washtenaw County Board of County Road Commissioners 
FROM: Sheryl Soderholm Siddall, Managing Director 

DATE: August 20, 2019 

SUBJECT:  Written Communications for August 20, 2019 Board Meeting 
 
WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS 

ISSUED: August 14, 2019 
WHERE: Waters Road; Meadow Lane Road;  Blue Grass Lane;  Prairie Road 
TOWNSHIP: Lodi 
WHY: Preventative maintenance – chip seal 
WHEN: Thursday, August 15, 2019 
CONTACT: Ken Harris, Superintendent of Maintenance 

ISSUED: August 14, 2019 
WHERE: Textile Road, Hereford Road, Lodi Lane 
TOWNSHIP: Lodi and Pittsfield 
WHY: Preventative maintenance – chip seal 
WHEN: Wednesday, August 14, 2019 
CONTACT: Ken Harris, Superintendent of Maintenance 

ISSUED: August 13, 2019 
WHERE: Textile Road, Hereford Road, Lodi Lane 
TOWNSHIP: Lodi and Pittsfield 
WHY: Preventative maintenance – chip seal 
WHEN: Wednesday, August 14, 2019 
CONTACT: Ken Harris, Superintendent of Maintenance 

ISSUED: August 13, 2019 
WHERE: Saline-Milan Road between Moon Road and Judd Road 
TOWNSHIP: York 
WHY: Preventative maintenance – chip seal 
WHEN: Wednesday, August 14, 2019 
CONTACT: Ken Harris, Superintendent of Maintenance 

  

17

http://www.wcroads.org/


 
 
 

ISSUED: August 9, 2019 
WHERE: Joy Road between Mast Road and Zeeb Road 
TOWNSHIP: Webster and Scio 
WHY: Joy Road open – completion of road improvement project 
WHEN: Friday, August 9, 2019 
CONTACT: Mike Bernbeck, Project Manager 

ISSUED: August 9, 2019 
WHERE: Carpenter Road between the City of Milan border and Textile Road 
TOWNSHIP: York and Pittsfield 
WHY: Preventative maintenance – chip seal – Carpenter Road closed 
WHEN: Monday, August 12, 2019 
CONTACT: Ken Harris, Superintendent of Maintenance 
 
ISSUED: August 9, 2019 
WHERE: Hawthorn Ridge Subdivision 
TOWNSHIP: Pittsfield 
WHY: Road resurfacing:  Tiger Lily Drive and Court; Moss Rose Court; Delilah Drive;  

Alder Court; Apple Ridge Drive; Honeysuckle Drive 
WHEN: Monday, August 12, 2019 
CONTACT: Mike Bernbeck, Project Manager 

ISSUED: August 7, 2019 
WHERE: Bunton Road between Willis Road and Textile Road – Augusta and Ypsilanti 
 Townships 

Tuttle Hill Road between Martz Road and Huron River Drive – Ypsilanti Township 
WHY: Preventative maintenance – chip seal 
WHEN: Thursday, August 8, 2019 
CONTACT: Ken Harris, Superintendent of Maintenance 

ISSUED: August 6, 2019 
WHERE: Clark Road between Leforge Road and Ridge Road 
TOWNSHIP: Ypsilanti and Superior 
WHY: Preventative maintenance – chip seal 
WHEN: Wednesday, August 7, 2019 
CONTACT: Ken Harris, Superintendent of Maintenance 

ISSUED: August 6, 2019 
WHERE: York Township Hall, 11560 Stony Creek Road, Milan 
TOWNSHIP: York 
WHY: Construction Open House – Ridge Road and Hack Road Intersection  

Improvement Project. 
WHEN: Monday, August 19, 2019 
CONTACT: Brent Schlack, Assistant Director of Engineering 

18



 
 
 

ISSUED: August 1, 2019 
WHERE: Currie Road between Six Mile Road and Eight Mile Road 
TOWNSHIP: Salem 
WHY: Preventative maintenance – chip seal 
WHEN: Monday, August 5, 2019 
CONTACT: Adam Lape, Superintendent of Maintenance 
 

19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



 

COMMISSIONERS 
 

DOUGLAS E. FULLER 
CHAIR 

 
BARBARA RYAN FULLER 

VICE-CHAIR 
 

RODRICK K. GREEN 
MEMBER 

 

WASHTENAW COUNTY 
BOARD OF COUNTY ROAD COMMISSIONERS 

555 NORTH ZEEB ROAD 
ANN ARBOR, MICHIGAN 48103 

WWW.WCROADS.ORG 
TELEPHONE (734) 761-1500 

FAX (734) 761-3737 

SHERYL SODERHOLM SIDDALL, P.E. 
MANAGING DIRECTOR 

 
MATTHEW F. MACDONELL, P.E. 

DIRECTOR OF ENGINEERING 
COUNTY HIGHWAY ENGINEER 

 
JAMES D. HARMON, P.E. 
DIRECTOR OF OPERATIONS 

 
DANIEL D. ACKERMAN 

DIRECTOR OF FINANCE & IT 

 

MEMO TO: Washtenaw County Board of County Road Commissioners 

THROUGH: Sheryl Soderholm Siddall, P.E. 
 Managing Director 

DATE: August 20, 2019 

SUBJECT:  NEW BUSINESS ITEMS FOR AUGUST 20, 2019 BOARD MEETING 

A. CONSENT ITEMS 

1. Retirement Resolution of Public Service – Kent J. Hopkins 

Staff is requesting the Board present Kent J. Hopkins, Facilities Supervisor, a Retirement 
Resolution of Public Service.  Mr. Hopkins began his full-time employment with the 
Washtenaw County Road Commission on March 3, 1994, as a Heavy Truck Driver on the 
state trunkline crew.  After two and half years, he successfully bid and transferred to the Shop 
as a Welder/Mechanic.  Then a year later, he successfully bid and transferred to the Buildings 
& Grounds crew as a facilities worker.  Mr. Hopkins was promoted to Facilities Supervisor on 
December 18, 2013 and has served the Road Commission in that role to retirement.   

Mr. Hopkins has been an invaluable source of knowledge and experience as an employee of 
the Road Commission for 25 years and has chosen to retire on August 14, 2019.  Staff is 
requesting that the Board present Mr. Hopkins with a resolution to recognize, commend and 
thank him for his 25 years of outstanding, dedicated public service to the Road Commission, 
the traveling public and the citizens of Washtenaw County. 

PROPOSED MOTION:   

WHEREAS, Kent J. Hopkins has served as a valuable, full-time employee of the 
Washtenaw County Road Commission from March 3, 1994 through August 14, 2019; 
and has elected to retire on August 14, 2019 to enjoy time with his family and friends; 
and 

WHEREAS Kent J. Hopkins has provided 25 years of faithful duty, knowledge and 
experience as a Heavy Truck Driver, Welder/Mechanic, Facilities Worker and as 
Facilities Supervisor, which has greatly benefited the Road Commission, the citizens 
of Washtenaw County and the traveling public; and 

  

31

http://www.wcroads.org/


 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that we, the Washtenaw County Board of Road 
Commissioners, thank, acknowledge and commend Kent J. Hopkins for his dedicated 
service, and wish him continued good health, happiness, and success in all his future 
endeavors. 

2. Textile Road at Woodland Drive – MDOT Contract 19-5403 
 
Staff is requesting the Board to approve the MDOT Contract for the Textile Road at Woodland 
Drive project. The project consists of roundabout construction, which will include HMA paving, 
concrete curb and gutter, sidewalk, storm water management system, and the 
coordination/installation of DTE street lighting.  The project is funded using federal, state and 
local funding sources: Federal Highway Safety Improvement Project Fund, Michigan 
Transportation Fund (MTF), and township participation. The estimated construction cost of 
the program is $627,200, with the WCRC being responsible for its local matching share 
estimated to be $153,829.70. The contract establishes roles for both parties and the funding 
percentages for each road segment shown in Exhibit I on page 8 of the Agreement. The 
WCRC’s portion of the local match for the project is included in the 2019 WCRC budget. 
 
PROPOSED MOTION: that upon the recommendation of the Director of 
Engineering/County Highway Engineer and the concurrence of the Managing 
Director, the Board hereby approves and authorizes the Chair and Managing 
Director to sign the MDOT Contract No. 19-5403 for the Textile Road at Woodland 
Drive project. 
 

3. SAW Grant – Storm Structure Cleaning Contract Services 

Staff is requesting the Board to approve a purchase order number 31510 amendment to 
United Resources, LLC in the amount of $345,000 for storm structure cleaning services. 
These services will work in coordination with the current storm structure inspections being 
completed by Hubble Roth & Clark as part of the Stormwater, Asset Management, and 
Wastewater (SAW) grant.  The approval of this purchase order amendment to the amount of 
$345,000 will complete the structure cleaning for 2019.  This amount is reimbursable through 
the SAW grant. 

PROPOSED MOTION:  that upon the recommendation of the Director of Engineering/ 
County Highway Engineer and concurrence of the Managing Director, the Board hereby 
approves the purchase order amendment to United Resources, LLC in the amount of 
$345,000 to complete the storm structure cleaning for 2019 as part of the Stormwater, 
Asset Management, and Wastewater (SAW) grant. 

  

32



 

4. Whitmore Lake High School Homecoming Parade – Road Closure 

Staff is requesting the Board to approve the closure of Main Street for the Whitmore Lake 
High School Homecoming Parade on Friday October 11, 2019. The Whitmore Lake Area 
Schools annually hosts the Whitmore Lake High School Homecoming Parade with the 
consent and authorization from Northfield Township.  Additionally, and pursuant to Michigan 
law (MCL §247.323), the Board of Road Commissioners must authorize the closure of roads 
under its jurisdiction for special events such as the Homecoming Parade.  Area residents and 
motorists will be temporarily impacted during the road closures.  The Northfield Public Safety 
Department shall be engaged to provide additional traffic control services. 

PROPOSED MOTION:  that upon the recommendation of the County Highway Engineer 
and the concurrence of the Managing Director the Board hereby approves the closure 
of the following road on Friday, October 11, 2019, for the Whitmore Lake High School 
Homecoming Parade from 3:45 p.m. – 5:45 p.m.: 

• Main Street from Barker Road to Seven Mile Road 
 

5. 905 E. Cross Street, Ypsilanti – Right of Way Sidewalk Easement  

The 2017 Preventative Maintenance Program rehabilitated Cross Street between Harris Road 
and Prospect Road in Ypsilanti Township.  During construction staff recognized a non-
compliant ADA sidewalk ramp would require immediate replacement.  Action was taken to 
install a compliant ADA ramp within the road right of way.  Subsequently, a survey was 
performed acknowledging the sidewalk ramp was placed on private property.  WCRC staff 
contacted the property owner and informed them of the discrepancy and discussed possible 
resolutions. Discussions were prolonged due to the limited time spent by the owner locally as 
he is a professor out of state and preferred direct discussions.  Discussions renewed last 
week, and an offer of compensation was presented retroactively for the easement and a 
temporary grading permit.  After negotiations, the property owner agreed upon One Thousand 
($1,000.00) Dollars. 

PROPOSED MOTION:  that upon the recommendation of the Director of Engineering, 
and concurrence of the Managing Director, the Board hereby approves and authorizes 
the Chair and Managing Director to accept and sign the counter offer of just 
compensation necessary to acquire a public sidewalk easement and temporary grading 
permit, as depicted in Attachment “A”, upon a parcel of property commonly referred to 
as 905 E. Cross Street, with a corresponding tax parcel number of K-11-03-381-026, 
being Lot 15 Supervisor’s Plat No. 1, Section 3, Town 3 South, Range 7 East, from the 
record owners Robert Kevin Reed and Helena Solano-Reed. 

  

33



 

6. 2020 Capital Equipment Purchase – Tractor Upfitting 
 
Staff is requesting the Board authorize the purchase of wet kit upfitting for three (3) new model 
year 2020 International HV613 truck chassis from Truck & Trailer Specialties, Inc. of Howell, 
Michigan using the City of Rochester Hills MITN Purchasing Cooperative Member Service 
Agreement in accordance with the attached quotation from Truck & Trailer Specialties dated 
August 1, 2019, for a total cost of $60,120.00.  This purchase authorization is planned for the 
FY2020 budget for road equipment capital outlay. 
 
PROPOSED MOTION:  that upon the recommendation of the Director of Operations and 
the concurrence of the Managing Director, the Board hereby approves the purchase 
from Truck & Trailer Specialties, Inc., 1200 Victory Drive, Howell, Michigan, 48843 
through the City of Rochester Hills MITN Purchasing Cooperative Member Service 
Agreement of wet kit upfitting for three (3) new model year 2020 International HV613 
truck chassis for the total cost of $60,120.00. 
 

7. Payroll & Bills for August 7, 2019 

Staff is requesting the Board to approve the payment of payroll and bills for August 7, 2019. 

PROPOSED MOTION:  the Board hereby approves Voucher 10362 totaling $342,783.43 
for payroll of August 7, 2019, and Voucher 10363 totaling $2,218,656.14 in payment of 
bills for August 7, 2019. 

 

B. ACTION ITEMS 

1. Hewitt Road Permit Application #14345 – Waiver Request 

Midwestern Consulting, on behalf of property owner Rahul Naik, is requesting a sight distance 
waiver for a residential driveway located at 271 N. Hewitt Road in Ypsilanti Township.  The 
Board denied this waiver on February 19, 2019 (RC19-044).  Additionally, a similar waiver 
request was denied by the WCRC Board on April 22, 2004 (RC04-142). The applicant has 
since modified their proposal to construct a ‘right in / right out’ median at their approach. 
County Highway Engineer Matt MacDonell has rejected this proposal. The applicant desires 
to seek a new waiver request from the Board. Revised documents received from the applicant 
are included in the Board packet for your review and consideration. 

PROPOSED MOTION:  that upon the recommendation of the County Highway Engineer 
and the concurrence of the Managing Director, the Board hereby denies a sight distance 
waiver, as requested by Midwestern Consulting on behalf of the property owner Rahul 
Naik, for a residential driveway located at 271 N. Hewitt Road in Ypsilanti Township. 

34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



 
 

WASHTENAW COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION 

TOWNSHIP/STAFF REPORT – August 20, 2019 

For the period of July 29 thru August 11, 2019 

 

TOWNSHIP REPORT 
 
OPERATIONS REPORT 

MAINTENANCE 

Scraping of gravel roads and patching of paved roads were performed throughout the 
county. In addition, the following maintenance activities were performed in individual 
townships:   
 
ANN ARBOR TOWNSHIP 
 Drainage and Backslopes – Danbury Lane, Englave Drive 
 Fallen Trees – Earhart Road 
 Placed Shoulders – Hogback Road 

 
AUGUSTA TOWNSHIP 
 Chip Sealing – Bunton Road 
 Limestone Patch – Wright Road: 24 tons 

 
BRIDGEWATER TOWNSHIP 
 Boom Mow – Austin Road, S Parker Road, Pleasant Lake Road, Schneider Road 
 Drainage and Backslopes – Allen Road, Bartlett Road, Easudes Road,  

Wilbur Road 
 Local Road Dust Control 
 Lowered Culvert – Sheridan Road 

 
DEXTER TOWNSHIP 
 Fallen Trees – N Territorial Road, Riker Road, Stinchfield Woods Road,  

Toma Road, Waterloo Road 
 Gravel Patch Shoulders – Dexter-Pinckney Road, McGregor Road, N Territorial 

Road 
 Limestone Patch – Colby Road, Donner Road, Quigley Road, Riker Road: 12 tons 
 Gravel Patch Shoulders – Dexter-Pinckney Road, Dexter Townhall Road, 

McGregor Road: 24 tons 
 Local Road Dust Control 
 Primary Road Dust Control 

 
FREEDOM TOWNSHIP 
 Boom Mow – Pleasant Lake Road, Parker Road 
 Limestone patch – Pleasant Lake Road: 2 tons 

 

55



 
LIMA TOWNSHIP 
 Cut Trees – Old US-12 Road 
 Local Road Dust Control 
 Primary Road Dust Control 
 Shoulder Maintenance – Old US-12 Road 
 Lima Center Road Limestone Resurfacing Project – 457 tons 

 
LODI TOWNSHIP 
 Cleaned Pipes – Dell Road 
 Drainage and Backslopes – Dell Road, Saline Waterworks Road, N Zeeb Road 
 Gravel Patch – Bethel Church Road, Ellsworth Road: 14 tons 
 Limestone Patch – Ellsworth Road, Waters Road, S Zeeb Road: 60 tons 
 Limestone Patch Shoulders – Parker Road, Wagner Road: 5 tons 

 
LYNDON TOWNSHIP 
 Boom Mow – Cassidy Road, Guinan Drive 
 Cut Trees – Waterloo Road 
 Drainage and Backslopes – Guinan Drive 
 Fallen Trees – Bush Road 
 Gravel Patch – Roe Road: 13 tons 
 Gravel Patch Shoulders – Island Lake Road, Stofer Road, Werkner Road: 6 tons 
 Shoulder Maintenance – N Territorial Road 

 
MANCHESTER TOWNSHIP 
 Culvert Replacement – Kirk Road 
 Drainage and Backslopes – Ely Road, Kirk Road, Sharon Hollow Road 
 Limestone Patch – Herman Road: 7 tons 
 Local Road Dust Control 
 Primary Road Dust Control 
 Sharon Hollow Road Gravel Resurfacing Project: 3,259 tons 

 
NORTHFIELD TOWNSHIP 
 Cut Trees – Walsh Road 
 Chip Sealing – N Territorial Road 
 Fallen Trees – Kearney Road 
 Limestone Patch Shoulders – Pontiac Trail: 20 tons 

 
SALEM TOWNSHIP 
 Boom Mow – Curtis Road, Joy Road, Seven Mile Road, Six Mile Road 
 Cleaned Pipes – E Joy Road 
 Chip Sealing – Chubb Road, Currie Road, Curtis Road 
 Fallen Trees – N Dixboro Road, Seven Mile Road 
 Limestone Patch – Napier Road: 6 tons 
 Local Road Dust Control 
 Roadside Debris – Brookville Road, Curtis Road 

 
  

56



 
 
SALINE TOWNSHIP 
 Limestone Patch – Arkona Road, Macon Road: 75 tons 
 Primary Road Dust Control 
 Willow Road Limestone Resurfacing Project: 4,781 tons 

 
SCIO TOWNSHIP 
 Boom Mow – Riverbend Drive 
 Drainage and Backslopes – N Zeeb Road 
 Gravel Patch – E Delhi Road: 15 tons 
 Limestone Patch Shoulders – Wagner Road: 9 tons 
 Local Road Dust Control 
 Repair Washout – Peters Road, Scio Road, Wagner Road 

 
SHARON TOWNSHIP 
 Boom Mow – Bethel Church Road, Grass Lake Road, Pleasant Lake Road,  

Sharon Hollow Road, Sharon Valley Road, Smythe Road, Sylvan Road 
 Drainage and Backslopes – Easudes Road 
 Fallen Trees – Trolz Road 
 Limestone Patch – Cherry Hill Road, Gotfredson Road: 58 tons 
 Local Road Dust Control 
 Primary Road Dust Control 

 
SUPERIOR TOWNSHIP 
 Boom Mow – Cherry Hill Road, Geddes Road 
 Chip Sealing – Curtis Road 
 HMA Resurfacing – Rolling Ridge Court 
 Limestone Patch – Warren Road: 4 tons 
 Limestone Patch Shoulders – Geddes Road: 10 tons 
 Local Road Dust Control 
 Roadside Debris – Gotfredson Road, N Harris Road, Vreeland Road 

 
SYLVAN TOWNSHIP 
 Boom Mow – Cavanaugh Lake Road, Old US-12 Road  
 Limestone Patch – McKinley Road: 12 tons 
 Local Road Dust Control 

 
WEBSTER TOWNSHIP 
 Berming and Ditching – Joy Road 
 Boom Mow – S Hamburg Road, Joy Road 
 Chip Sealing – N Territorial Road, Mast Road, Strawberry Lake Road 
 Cleared Pipes – Joy Road 
 Cut Trees – N Territorial Road, Old US-12 Road, Walsh Road 
 Gravel Patch – Huron River Drive, Joy Road, Scully Road: 60 tons 
 HMA Resurfacing – Joy Road 
 Limestone Patch Shoulders: Gregory Road, N Territorial Road: 9 tons 
 Local Road Dust Control 

 
  

57



 
 
YORK TOWNSHIP 
 Drainage and Backslopes – Acorn Avenue 
 Limestone Patch – Crane Road, Judd Road, Mooreville Road, Wright Road:  

65 tons 
 Maple Road Limestone Resurfacing Project – 9,523 tons 
 Primary Road Dust Control 

 
YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP 
 Boom Mow – Bunton Road, Hitchingham Road, Textile Road, Whittaker Road 
 Brush Removal – Bridge Road, Bunton Road,  
 Chip Sealing – Bunton Road, Tuttle Hill Road 
 Concrete Work and ADA Ramp Installation – Ford Boulevard 
 Crack Sealing – Allen Avenue, Borgstrom Street, Georgina Drive, Jay Avenue, 

Jeffery Street, Jerome Avenue, Juneau Road, Lamay Avenue, Molner Court,  
Rue Deauville Boulevard, Rue Vendome Boulevard, Rue Willette Boulevard 

 Fallen Trees – Greenside Street, Textile Road 
 Repaired Drain – Hitchingham Road 

 
SHOP REPORT 
Shop Repairs 
 New Tire Installation – 8 tires 
 Tires Repaired – 3 tires 
 Vehicles Serviced – 4 
 Vehicles Serviced by Suburban Chevrolet – 3 
 Work Orders Completed – 58 

 
Equipment Repair 
 Truck 248 – Decommissioned 
 Truck 379 – Replaced front springs 
 Truck 119 – Replaced front pads, rotors and calipers 
 Grader 475 – Prepped 
 Truck 322 – Installed new floor 
 Truck 394 – Installed new rear brake chambers 
 Truck 326 – Installed new starter 

 
BUILDING & GROUNDS REPORT 
Yard One 
 Janitorial 
 Lawn Care 
 Installed new air ducts in drivers break room 
 Monthly checks 
 Remodeled Conference Room 200 
 Repaired gutter on fuel island 

 
  

58



 
 
Yard Two 
 Fabricated cage for propane storage and saws 
 Lawn care 
 Installed hose bib under sink 
 Cleaned A/C condensers 
 Monthly checks 
 Installed white board 

 
Yard Three 
 Painted bollards 
 Lawn care 
 Cleaned A/C condensers 
 Monthly checks 
 Repaired barn roof 

 
Yard Four 
 Lawn care 
 Cleaned A/C condensers 
 Painted bollards 
 Monthly checks 

 
Yard Six 
 Repaired garage door 
 Lawn care 
 Monthly checks 

 
Kaiser Brine Well 
 Adjusted packings 
 Greased well 
 Lawn care 

 

 
MEETINGS ATTENDED 
 
7/31/2019 K. Harris attended the Ford Lake Dam Emergency Action Plan Functional 

Exercise at the offices of Barr Engineering in Ann Arbor, Michigan 

8/5/2019 The quarterly CRA Southeastern Council meeting was held in the Assembly 
Room 

 

59



60


	2019Minutes_080619
	Written Comm Cover_082019
	Written Comm_backup
	Consent Agenda - cover_082019
	Consent Agenda_backup
	Staff Rpt_7-29 to 8-11-19
	WASHTENAW COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION
	TOWNSHIP REPORT

	MTF



